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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This small coral island's strategic location has played a
major role in its history and development. As a part of the
treacherous Florida Reef, it lies .at the gateway of one of the
world's busiest sea lanes. ’

Before the coming of the white man, the Indians of the
mainland visited here enroute to trade with their neighbors in
the Caribbean. The legend is that these tribes fought a great
battle on this island. Later, when the Spanish explorers
found the bones of the victims, they named the island Cayo
Hueso which is believed to mean Bone Key. Hueso is pronounced
"wesso"; the English corrupted it into Key West.

As the most historic city in South Florida, Key West owes
much of its charm to its distinctive architecture. According
_to a recent statement made by Mr. Robert Garvey, President of
the National Trust for Historic Preservation, "Some of these
quaint and charming houses are to be found in no other area in
the country". The history of these houses goes back to the
early beginnings of Key West when the first settlers came to
the Island. They were from the eastern sea-board of the United
States, the Bahama Islands, Cuba, and Europe and many of the
old houses in Key West reflect this delightful mixture of
nationalities and has created a feeling of what has often been
described as old world atmosphere. .

Of all the styles or types of buildings the one most
typical and distinctively Key West is known as "Conch" or
Bahama. Built of wood by ship carpenters, their simple, clean
lines have the same balance and grace found in a fine sailing
ship. These houses were built to withstand high winds and
tropical climate. Their wide porches have slender, square
columns which support the main roof. In some instances,
windows under the eaves open onto these porches. All windows -
were protected by shutters or "blinds". These allowed light
and air into the high-ceilinged rooms, yet kept out the hot
tropic sun. The high-peaked roofs were designed to catch the

maximum amount of rain water which was stored in great cisterns.

Oon the roofs of the smaller houses there were often small
hatches similar to those found on a ship. They were built to
allow air and light into the attic bedrooms during the warmer
weather. The cupolas or "widows walks" on many of the larger
pbuildings were built as a vantage point Lo ncan tha noearchy
reefs for evidence of wrecks. These sturdy houses have a
classic simplicity only occasionally rel%eved by the addition
of lacy woodwork or delicately-turned spindles on the porch

rails.
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Nearly all the early buildings were of wood. Some were of a
stone quarried here on the island but of too soft a quality to
endure without a protective coating of cement. Two examples are
to be seen on 01ld Mallory Square, others are the Convent and the
Hemingway House. With the exception of Fort Taylor, brick was
not used to any great extent until after the fire of 1886 when
half the town was destroyed.

Buildings of various styles, materials and periods are to be
seen throughout the island. Their architecture is often rem-
iniscent of other places but somehow there is a difference.

The 01d Section of the City of Key West, Florida, is hereby
defined to comprise all that area within the city limits of the
City of Key West, Florida, contained within the following
boundaries:

Commencing on the center line of Front Street, projected

to the waters of the harbor, and running thence in a westerl
direction along the center line of Front Street to where it
intersects the center line of Simonton Street; thence at
right angles in a southerly direction along the center line
of Simonton Street to where it intersects the center line of
Greene Street; thence at right angles in an easterly dir-
ection along the center line of Greene Street to where it
intersects the center line of Elizabeth Street; thence at
right angles in a southerly direction along the center line
of Elizabeth Street to where it intersects the center line o
Caroline Street; thence at right angles in an easterly di-
rection along the center line of Caroline Street to where

it intersects the center line of Grinnell Street; thence at
right angles in a southerly direction along the center line
of Grinnell Street to where it intersects the center line of
James Street; thence at right angles in an easterly direc-
tion along the center line of James Street to where it inter
sects the center line of Frances Street; thence at right
angles in a southerly direction along the center line of
Frances Street to where it intersects the center 1line of
Eaton Street; thence at right angles in an easterly direc-
tion along the center line of Eaton Street to where it inter
sects the center line of White Street; thence at right angle
in a southerly direction along the center line of White Stre
to where it intersects the center line of Angela Street;
thence at right angles in a westerly direction along the
center line of Angela Street to where it intersects the

(Continued...)
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center lines of Margaret Street and Passover Lane; thence at
right angles in a southwesterly direction along the center
line of Passover Lane to where it intersects the center line
of Windsor Lane; thence at right angles in a northwesterly
direction along the center line of Windsor Lane to where it
intersects the center lines of Elizabeth and Angela Streets;
thence at an angle in a westerly direction along the center
line of Angela Street to where it intersects the center line
of Whitehead Street; thence at right angles in a northerly
direction along the center line of Whitehead Street to where
it intersects the center line of Southard Street; thence at
right angles in a westerly direction along the center line
of Southard Street to where it intersects the center line of
Thomas Street; thence at right angles in a northerly direc-
tion along the center line of Thomas Street to where it
intersects the center line of Fleming Street; thence at righ
angles in an easterly direction along the center line of
Fleming Street to where it intersects the center line of
Whitehead Street; thence at right angles in a northerly dire
tion along the center line of Whitehead Street to where it
intersects the center line of Greene Street; thence at right
angles in a westerly direction along the center line of
Greene Street to where it intersects the center line of
Front Street; thence at an angle in a northeasterly directio
along the center line of Front Street to where it intersects
the northerly boundary line of the U.S. Coast Guard property
extended in a southeasterly direction to said center line;
thence in a northwesterly direction at an angle along a

line extended from said intersection in a northwesterly
direction, to the waters of the Gulf; thence meandering the
shoreline of Squares 3, 2 and 1 as shown on William A.
Whitehead's map of the City of Key West, delineated in Feb.,
1829, back to the point of beginning; EXCLUDING THEREFROM
any property owned by the United States Government, and
those (3) blocks of Duval Street lying between Eaton and
Angela Streets, BUT NOT EXCLUDING THEREFROM any property
owned by St. Paul's Episcopal Church of Key West, Florida.

0

The city is frost-free. Its longitude is 81" 48" west.

Latitude is 249 33" north.

1
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The 0l1d Island Restoration Commission was created by
Chapter 69-1187 Laws of Florida, June 29, 1969. It has
for its purpose the historic preservation of the old
section of the city of Key West.

Indians lived on Key West and traded across the
Florida Straights before the coming of the white men.
Ponce de Leon sailed along the Keys in his search for
the fountain of youth. A few Spanish families had already
settled on Key West during the first Spanish Period.

When the English got Florida in 1763, they left taking
with them some 80 Indian families to Havana.

The first owner of the island was Juan Pablo Salas of
St. Augustine who received it as a Spanish grant in 1815.
When Florida became a Territory of the United States in 1821,
Salas sold the island to John W. Simonton, an American bus-
inessman, for $2,000. Simonton was aware of the island's
deep and natural harbor and strategic potentialities.
Through powerful friends in Washington, he set about estab-
lishing it as a port and wrecking depot where for many years
it was visited by ships of all nations. In 1821, another era
of history began. A fresh outbreak of piracy in this area,
and an increase in wrecker activity began costing American
shippers many lives and millions of dollars annually. Throug
the efforts of Simonton, the Sec. of the Navy ordered Lt.
Matthew C. Perry to the island to make a survey. Perry's
report resulted in the establishment of a naval station here
in 1823. The station was placed under the command of Comm.
David Porter, and it was here that he based his Anti-Pirate
Squadron. At this time, the island was under military con-
“trol and by 1826, thc pirates had been driven from the seas.

47 Koy West has been a Naval base since that time.

As early as 1822, a Customs House had been established
here and in 1824, Monroe County named for President Monroe,
was created. It became the sixth county in the Florida

Territory. Although Key West was made the county seat, it
was not until 1828 that it became incorporated as a city.

(Continued...)
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In 1831, an Army port had been established at Key West and
in 1845, the construction of two great forts, Fort Jefferson at
the Dry Tortugas and Fort Taylor here, had begun. Although
these forts were not completed at the outbreak of the Civil War,
the Union government was prompt in sending reinforcements to
occupy them. Key West remained a Union port throughout the war.
During this time, the Admiralty Court of Key West handled 299
cases of captured Confederate blocade runners. In 1861, a dis-
tinguished citizen of Key West, Stephen R. Mallory, a member of
the U.S. Congress, was appointed as Sec. of the Navy for the
Confederacy, and although his dream of a Confederate Navy was
never an accomplished fact, his achievements were remarkable.

In 1862, Farragut and David Dixon Porter made rendezvous here and
laid their plans for the capture of New Orleans. Key West's role
during the entire war was a most unusual one - being inhabited

predominantly by Southern sympathizers - yet it was the only city|

that never left Union control.

Prior to the Spanish American War, many Cubans had begun to
settle in Key West as their dislike of Spanish rule grew. They
brought latin tolerance, gaiety, and spicy cookery, and soon
gained the sympathy of the Key Westers. Key West became known
as the Cradle of Cuban Independence when Jose Marti, at the
suggestion of the Central Junta in New York composed of Cuban
patriots in exile, came to Key West to perfect invasion plans
for the Partido Revolutionario Cubano. On April 14, 1895, Marti
with General Maximo Gomez and a small army left Key West and made
a landing on the coast of Cuba and the Spanish American War was
underway. Key West had a front row seat in this conflict - not
only as a staging area for the Cuban Invasion - but for members o
the press tyring to get to Cuba to cover the war. 1In 1898, the
USS Maine exploded in Havana Harbor; Key West was the scene of
much sorrow, the dead being brought here for burial and the
wounded taken to the Convent of Mary Immaculate School where they
were nursed by the sisters.

After the war, great numbers of Cuban political refugees
began to arrive in Key West. This, with a tremendous influx of
settlers from the Bahamas, increased the population. The Cubans
started the manufacturing of handmade cigars which provided

1ﬁ thousands of them with a livelihood, and the Bahamians turned to
' wrecking, fishing, and sponging. By 1890, Key West had become

the largest and wealthiest city in Florida. 1In 1912, after being

isolated from the mainland except by boat for almost a hundred

years, the people of Key West witnessed a miracle which made a
(Continued...)
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decided change in the history of the island. Henry M. Flagler's
‘dream of a "railroad that went to sea" became a reality. This
tremendous engineering feat cost 50 million dollars and 700 lives
but the 1935 hurricane - the last of the great ones - destroyed
in one day so much of the railroad that it was not feasible to
rebuild. Once more, with only ferry boats as transportation,
Key West was isolated from the mainland until the Overseas High-
way, the longest in the world, was completed in 1938.

In 1914, the Panama Canal was opened, and Key West became
the "Gibraltar of the Gulf". Military buildup for World War I
began. The island became the vital spot for Army and Naval force
The coming of prohibition was an invitation to rum~-running from
the Bahamas and Cuba. Bootlegging became a lucrative business
which was soon followed by the smuggling of aliens and narcotics;
however, this was offset by the loss of the wrecking profession
when the Key West Admiralty Court was closed. In the meantime,
the big Florida landboom was beginning and Key West was a part
of it; business was good everywhere and the future of Key West
seemed assured.

Then the depression came. Key West was one of the earliest
and hardest hit areas. The causes were many--the collapse of
the sugar market in Cuba, the blight that destroyed the sponge
beds, the loss of the cigar industry, the closing of the naval
station, and the Labor Day hurricane that destroyed the railroad.
These events resulted in the creation of a unique experiment in
rehabilitation. The legal, political, and economic problems of
the county and its only city, Key West, were turned over by the
Governor of Florida to the Florida Emergency Relief Administra-
tion. After a study of the remaining resources, the decision was
made to promote the city's one unfailing asset--its climate.
This large scale promotion program was aimed at attracting artist
writers, and tourists all of whom were searching for sunshine and
good weather. As a result of this rehabilitation project, a
dedided upswing in business was soon evident. Not only did this
bring economic stability to the island, but another charm was
added - artists and other creative groups did find their way
here and started a cultural colony that had great appeal to the
tourists and winter residents - and Key West once more was bask-

ing in the sun of prosperity.

World War II saw the reactivating of the Naval Station, in-
creases in military and other related personnel, the establish-
ing of the Sea Plane Base, the Boca Chica Air Station, and the

(Continued...)
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Naval Hospital. The island became as much a concentrated naval
operation as it had been over a hundred years before when Comm.
Porter established the first Naval station here. It has taken
119 years to formulate the proud and beautiful heritage of this
lonely dot of land lying between the Atlantic Ocean and the Gulf
of Mexico - this small island of Cayo Hueso that has always had

a part in the making of history in the Western Hemisphere.




History of Key West Today and Yesterday, 1959, Mora K. Smiley

Petersburg, Florida.

and Louise V. White, Great Outdoors Publishing Co., St.

History of Key West, W. C. Maloney, Univ, of Florida Press, 1876.
Key West the 0ld and the New, Jefferson B. Brown, 1912, The
Record Company Printers and Publishers, St. Augustine.
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Verbal Description of Key West National Register District

Beginning at a point on the northwest curb line of Front
Street 145' more or less northeast of the intersection of
Simonton Street, run southeast 220' more or less; then run
southwest 145' to the northeast curb line of Simonton Street;
then run southeast along the curb line to the intersection of
Greene Street; then run northeast on Greene Street along the
northwest curb line to the intersection of Elizabeth Street;
then run southeast on Elizabeth Street along the average back
property line of the northeast side to the intersection with
Caroline Street; then run northeast on Caroline Street along
the average back property line of the northwest side to the
intersection with Peacon Lane; then run southeast to the north-
west curb line of Caroline Street; then run northeast along the
same curb line to the intersection with Margaret Street; then
run southeast along the northeast curb line of Margaret Street
to the intersection of James Street; then.run northeast on
James Street along the northwest curb line to the intersection
of Frances Street; then run southeast on Frances Street along
the northeast curb line to the intersection of Eaton Street;
then run northeast on Eaton Street along the northwest curb
line to the intersection of White Street; then run southeast
on White Street along the northeast curb line to the intersec-
tion of the tract line of Angela Street; then run northeast on
the tract line of Angela Street along Peary Court to the inter-
section of Eisenhower Drive; then run southeast on Eisenhower
Drive along the northeast curb line to the intersection of
Truman Avenue; then cross Truman Avenue and continue southeast
along the northeast curb line of Marti Street to the intersec-
tion of Virginia Street; then run southwest on Virginia Street
along the southeast curb line to the intersection of Pearl
Street; then run southeast on Pearl Street along the northeast
curb line to the intersection of Catherine Street; then run
northeast on Catherine Street along the northwest curb line to
the intersection of Leon Street; then run southeast on Leon
Street along the northeast curb line to the intersection of
United Street; then run southwest on United Street along the
southeast curb line to the intersection of Tropical Avenue;
then run southeast on Tropical Avenue along the northeast curb
line to the intersection of Seminary Street; then run southwest
on Seminary along the southeast average back property line to
the intersection of White Street; then run southeast on White
Street along the northeast average back property line to the
intersection of Von Phister Street; then run southwest on Von
Phister Street along the southeast average back property line
to a point across the intersection with White Street; then run
northwest on White Street along the average back property line
of the southwest side to the intersection of Seminary Street;
then run southwest on Seminary Street along the southeast
average back property line to the intersection of Reynolds
Street; then run northwest on Reynolds Street along the south-
west average back property line to the intersection of United



Street; then run southwest on United Street along the southeast
average back property line to the intersection of Royal Street;
then continue southwest on United Street along the southeast
curb line to the intersection of William Street; then continue
southwest on United Street along the southeast average back
"property line to the intersection of Elizabeth Street; then
run southeast on Elizabeth Street along the northeast average
back property line to the intersection of South Street; then
cross .South Street turn northeast and run to the average back
property line of the northeast side of Vernon, then continue
southeast along the northeast average back property line of
Vernon Street to the intersection of Seminole Street, then run
northeast along Seminole Street along the northwest average
back property line to the intersection with Reynolds Street;
then run southeast on Reynolds Street along the northeast curb
line to the waters of the Atlantic Ocean; then run in a
westerly direction along the shore line to the point where an
alley running along the line dividing tracts 16 and 17, 11 and
12 meets the waters of the Atlantic Ocean; then run northwest
along the tract line to the intersection of Amelia Street,;
then run northeast on Amelia Street at the boundary of the
Convent property to the intersection of Windsor Lane; then
run northwest on Windsor Lane along the boundary of the Convent
property to the intersection of Truman Avenue; then run south-
west on Truman Avenue along the southeast curb liné to the
intersection with Center Street; then run southeast across the
center point, more or less, of Block Z Tract 11 to Virginia
Street; then run northeast on Virginia Street along the north-
west curb line to the intersection of Simonton Street; then run
southeast on Simonton Street along the northeast curb line to
the intersection of United Street; then run southwest on United
Street along the southeast curb line to the intersection of
Duval Street; then run southeast on Duval Street along the
northeast curb line to the intersection of South Street; then
run northeast on South Street along the northwest curb line
to the mid-point, more or less, of Block 2 Tract 16; then run
southeast to the southeast average back property line of the
southeast side of South Street; then run southwest along this
line to the intersection of Duval Street; then run southeast
on Duval Street along the average back property line of the
northeast side of the waters of the Atlantic Ocean; then meander
in a southwesterly direction along the shoreline to the point
where Whitehead Street meets the waters of the Atlantic Ocean;
then run northwest on Whitehead Street along the boundary of
the naval property to Catherine Street; then run southwest on
Catherine Street along the southeast average back property
line to the intersection of Thomas Street; then run northwest
on Thomas Street along the southwest curb line to the inter-
section of Virginia Street; then run southwest on Virginia
Street along the southeast curb line to the intersection of
Howe Street; then run northwest on Howe Street along the south-
west average back property line to Truman Avenue; then run
southwest on Truman Avenue along the southeast average back



property line to the intersection of Emma Street; then run
northwest on Emma Street along the southwest curb line of Emma
Street to a point northeast of the southeastern termination

of Williams Alley; then run southwest from this point across
Fort Street to the boundary of the naval property; then run
northwest on Fort Street along the boundary of the naval pro-
perty to the intersection of Olivia Street; then run northeast
on Olivia Street along the southeast curb line to the intersec-
tion of Emma Street; then run northwest on Emma Street along
the southwest curb line to the intersection of Petronia Street;
then run southwest on Petronia Street along the southeast

curb line to the intersection of Fort Street; then run north-
west on Fort Street along the boundary of the naval property

to the intersection of Angela Street; then run northeast on
Angela Street along the boundary of the excessed naval property
to the intersection of Thomas Street; then run northwest on
Thomas Street along the boundary of the excessed naval property
to the intersection of Fleming Street; then run northeast

on Fleming Street along the boundary of the excessed naval
property to the intersection of Whitehead Street; then run
northwest on Whitehead Street along the boundary of the ex-
cessed naval property to the intersection of Eaton Street;

then run southwest on the excessed naval property along the
northwest curb line of Faton Street 144' more or less; then

run at a right angle northwest 100' more or less; then run at

a right angle northeast 43' more or less; then run at a right
angle northwest to the southeast curb line of Caroline Street;
then run southwest along the southeast curb line of Caroline
Street to the intersection of Front Street; then run south on
Front Street along the east curb line to a point 20' more or
less north of building 66; then run east 97' more or less;

then run south 173' more or less; then run west to the east curb
line of Front Street; then run south along the east curb line
of Front Street to a point intersecting the extension of the
west line of Fleming Street; then run at a right angle west
192' more or less; then at a right angle south 192' more or
less; then run at a right angle west to the fence which runs
along the alley to the west of building R; then run north along
this line behind building A and building 91 to a point 10' more
or less south of cistern 26; then run at an angle northwest

10' more or less southwest of cistern 27; then run north to

the line of the alley separating building 91 and building 1;
then run northwest along the southwest curb line of the alley
to the waters of the harbor; then run northeast along the line
where the docks meet the waters of the harbor to the point where
a fence divides Mallory dock from the Gulf 0il Company dock;
then run east along this fence to the near curb of Wall Street,;
then run northeast along the near curb line of Wall Street to
the intersection of Duval Street; then run southeast on Duval
Street along the northeast curb line to the intersection of
Front Street; then run northeast on Front Street along the
northwest curb line to the point of the beginning.



